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Buildings reveal Frankford’s s history

The tace of Frankford is probably most
notable for the vanety of buildings and
architechture that line the sides of the
town's main street. Each site has an inter-
esting history, and many of the buildings
date back centuries. Some simply are no
longer thepe Whatever the case,
Frankford's history has been long marked
by constant change, a thought made abyi-
ous by buildings like the country store and
the Town Hall. '

The country store changed hands a
number of times, originally belonging to
the Long family. Considered a hub of
town commamnication for many years, it is
no longer there, Likewise, the Town Hall

h'.:il' ing L:-L'ur. nat as the fown hall, but as

mally mﬂ.ﬂnmd in 1913 A.Hu- the bank.

moved across the street, then eventually
out of town all together, the site was used
to house the library and town hali.
Eventually, the library would move into
the Bank's second site (across the street),
and the original site was used strictly for
the Town Hall. It continues to stand today.

Other buildings such as the Post Office,
have simply undergone a severe facelift
over time. Onginally founded in 1848, the
Post Oiffice was an extension of the coun-
try store, where people would stop daily

and times changed, however, a new Post
Office was apene d, and continues to stand
today ¢on Clayton Avenue and Daisey
Street

The Churches

The Methodist Church of Frankford,
considered the earliest church still stand-
ing in the town was built in 1352 along
with a cemetery.
Many prominent
members: of the
town's  original
community  are
buried there today,
including the Long
family, who played

rode in the develop-
ment of * “the
{_furch,

The Presbyterian

Church stands
across  from  the
inlersection at .

Thatcher Street and
Main, on the land where once stood the
original Gum family residence. The
church was moved to that location in
September of 1978, from its original loca-
tion on Knox Street and remains almost
exactly as it was when it was built in 1881.

to pick up their mail. As needs increased

The Antioch African Methodist Episcopal Church, located at MNorth Clayton Avenwe in

Frankford, is & typlcal example of the many historical buildings that line the streets of the
small town. Originally bullt in 1890, the church was rebuilt in 1946 after a fire destroyed It.
It s one of many buildings in the town with a long and interesting history,

Im  addition, the Antioch African
Methodist Episcopal Church also joins the
remarkable collection.  Originally estab-
lishied in 1856, it s believed 10 be the only
Negrmo church in the state with an active
camp meeting. Meefings are held in
August, The present church, built in 189,
wis rebutit in 1946 when a fire destroyed
it. It is currently located at Morth Clayton
Avenue.

Other buildings
of mote include
Indian River High
Schioal, which was
formerly known as
Johm M. Clayton
School and  the

ing, whach. was
originally known
as the Frankford
Cypera House.

Historian
Eugene F
Castrovillo, Ir.
gives an account of
another Frankford landmark, one that has
been gone for almst 30 years.

The Halloway Hotel was established in
1857 by William Halloway. It was located
on Main Street and was demolished many
years ago. For a better insight, we refer to

Above, the Franklord United Methodist Church stands at the comer of Main and Daisey

an interview with Bill Long, who remem:
bers the Obd Hotel and actually lived ther
for many years.

“In 1930-31, during the depression
father lost his home and the store h
owned, He went to work on a steame
ship and the family went to live in th
hotel

It was a bwo story structune with abou
eight to ten rooms, a porch in front, frams
building covered with Cypress shingles
gingerbread scrolling and had a stairway
in the middle as you entered the fron
dioor.

The sidewalk curved mward in front o
the porch and the hotel was sét back fron
the strest.”

goods peddier; coming ito Frankiord or

“fhe rafircad from Ehﬂl&-p]phm

He would lodge at the Halloway Hote
ovemnight, then, the next day, rent a hors
and carriage to go out into the countrysids
and sell his goods,

Babe Gum recalls that in 1932, the
Halloway Hotel, downstairs front wa:
being occupied by the Fost Office,

The Past Office remained there approxi
mately five vears, at which time, it wa:
moved elsewhere,

The hotel was demolished in 1970, whet
it was torm down and then burned.

S

Streets. Originally built in 1853, the spire was later added in 1BB0. The adjaining Suriday

School room was built in 1916.

The pheotoe In center of the page Teatures the Framkford

Town Hall, formerly the First Matfonal Bank of Frankford, and originally basdit in 1913,
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The town of Frankford was started in
1818 anad was once a thriving town prior toe
World War II. It had a Pennsylvama
Railroad station at which trains routinely
stopped and farm goods were shipped
fromn the surrounding areas as well as trav-
eling salesmen coming m and sellng thear
latest Fashions and wares.

Captain John Long's Boulevard Hotel,
located behind the railrad station, was
the place many ‘:':1:'{.-[:'|1-' il -_-.pen-;] the
night. Frankford had several commercial
establishovents, such as Tingle Brothers
and many general stores where people
would gather around the coal stove for
various everyday discussions, [t also
boasts of a haberdashery, drug store, coal
and ]'.n:-ultr':' feed business, and, of course,
the First Mational Bank of Frankford,
Doctor's offices were located at Main
Street and Delaware Avenue, and Thatcher
airest,

The ciiltural eenter of Frankfond was the
lones Opera House. A school, named John
M. Clayton school, was built in 1932 with
laborers working at 40 cents an hour, Itis
now known as Indian River High School.

A post office was opened in 1848 and
acquired the Frankiord village tithe. Most

patrons would pick up ther mail at the
general stare prior to a permanent build
ing being built. The postmasters or keep-
%, Were gwners of 'he uniry store. The
post office s oow Icr ’1 d on Clayton
Avenue in & new nurjvrr building.

Coce the DuPont Highway was built,
the commercial outlook for the town
changed. [t was more ecornmical to use
the highway than the railmads, thus
reducing the monopoly the railroads had
on the town's economy.

Many other changes have affected the
small town as well, sccording to local his-
torian Eugene F Castrovillo, Jr

Ihe country store, tor example, which
for s0 many years was the hub for infor-
mation and local gossip, has slowly
evolved. After first going from a country
store 1o the larger “General Store (a term
suggesting that all kinds of merchandise
may be obtained, including food, clothing,
seed, machinery, tools, toys, cigarettes,
lumber, and buildng supplies of all
kinds),” stores  eventually evolved
towards the very modem idea of super-

Frankford...A Brief 1st0ry ‘

Photo provided by Barbara Godwin

markets. MNow, rather than bLirlH the cer-  aAbove, the original Chandler House in Frankford. The house was later moved back a few
feetl io accomodate the front ponch, which was owned by Captain Ebe Townsend Chandler.
gathers for discussions, it is simply a place The hause till stands, though it i3 now & bed and breakfast,

tral meeting place where much of the town
ta shop.

Many Other Changes
The town has seen many other changes

a5 wel.

The Town Hall, for example, is presently
housed in what ‘was originally the First
Matonal Bank of Delaware. In 1952, the

hank huilt & new building across the street _
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with the Town offices in the bank secton.
In 1980, First Mational Bank of Frankford
built their present headguarters and
merged with Sussex Trust in 1983, The
library moved across the street into First
Mational Bank's previous building, there-
fore allowing the Town offices to remodel
and expand their facilities, keeping the
same facade, The building was originally
constructed in 1913,

In the spring of 1933, the town added a
Yolunteer Fire Company, the result of a
serious fire on Clayton Avenue which
destroyed the home of Dan and Mae

Carey, local residents,

In 1983, the fire company celebrabed
their 50th anniversary with a parade, and
several area fire companies and digini-
faries participated. B

£ company n:.ml'r.tlfha:. -i5 :|:r||:mb|:1.'5
and a ladies” awdliary. It consists of seven
pieces of fire equipment and three ambu-
lances.

The fire house was built in 1936, the first
one being the south wing of the Power
Station which had been abandoned when
the Eastern Shore Public Service brought
electricity to the town on a full time basis
in the 1520s.

It now houses the water plant.

The town has seen many buildings and
people come and go over the years, and
change for the small town will likely con-
tinue.
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First families

Continued from previous page
noncommissioned officers and privates.

On April 28, 1813 the Secretary of War
requisitioned Long’s detachment to ren-
dezvous at New Castle as quickly as possi-
ble and to report to General Bloomfield,
who was commander of the District. On
Mav 13, the ICth Regiment was ordered to
Lewistown by Governor Haslet, who con-
sidered that an emergency existed. On Qe
15, 1814, Armwell Long was officially
recommssioned Lieutenant Coloner, and
finaliv given controi of the 10th regimen,
the post he had originally been given in
07

From the above accounts, we ¢an now
establish that Colonel Long served in the
Delaware Militia approximateiy 10 vears.

It appears that the Longs were very
much involved with Prince George's
Church in the 17905, Armweil is listed as
having been nominated and appointed as
a vestrymen on Easter Monday, the fifth of
April, 1790. On May 8, 1806, Long, his
wife and father David received commu-
nion at Prince George's Chapel. On
August 3, 1822, we find listed as present
members Armwell and his son Isiah. [t
appears the Longs also owned Pew five at
the Chapel as late as 1822. All lands, per-
sonal items and dwellings belonging to
Armwell were divided among his chil-
dren. On a recently discovered map dat-
ing back to 1817, it is revealed that

[ ————————————————————————————eee

Armwell owned all the land ¢n one side of
Main St. in Frankford.

lsiah Long was the son of Armwell
Long;.  He was born in Frankterd on
August 311783 and died [elv 28, 1832,
Isiah married Elizabeth Schodield and she
bare him tweive children. Isaiah Long is
the founding father of Frankford, as he
owned the first country store located on
Vine's Branch road in 1808. The store was
known by all during that period, geing by
the name Long's Store on Vine's Branch. A
stere ledger recentiv discovered verifies
taiah as the srst owner of that store

[stab's estate totalled 2600 acres of lard
i the Baltimore and Dagsboro Hurdreds.
which he conbinued fe own unfi! s death,
He died af the age of 49 vears and s buried
in the Long Cemetery.

The Gum Familly

John Gum appears to have been the first
Gum associated with Frankiord. He was
born on November 17, 1784 and was actu-
ally related to the Longs through his mar-
rage to Martha Polly Long in November
of 1806. Martha was born on Aprit 2, 1784
and died October 16, 1830. In the War of
1812, John fought with Captain Issaac
Waples Command, 4th company, 10th reg-
iment under Lieutenant Colonel Armuwell
Long and was at Lewes with the company
during the naval skirmish with the British.
He died on December 16, 1875, and is
buried in the Armwell Long Cemetery.

Manaen Gum was the son of John Gum.
He was bomn February 16, 1808 and died in

1686. Manaen was married on September
a6, 18306, to Salie Crumpton, and later
acquired the countrv store previously
owned by Istah Long located at the comer
ot Thatcher and Main St. We have exam-
ine<dt the old store ledger and have diseov-
er¢d that over 200 different itemis were
sold in the store. Manaen was a very
wealthy and influential man. On a map of
Philadelphia dated 1850, he s Hsted as
owning a saw and grist mill. In (860 he is
Dsted with assests of S1ERK). Onthe 15868
Beer’s man. Gaen was histed as a lumier
AN gran mercnant plus the vwaer of five
separaie buihiings in Frankiord It 1s
believed that he Lved diirectiv across the
street from the old country stere or Mam
St Manaen's anal reshirg, place remans
unkrown to s date

Francis Manaen Gae was born in 1548,
He was the sssue of Manaser ard marricd
Many Catherine Bernett who was born e
523 Francis was a doctor who attended
to the sick and lame for moanry years
between 1845 and 1924 in Frankford. The
late Francis Manaen “Babe” Gum [
remembered taking rides swith his grand-
father in the horse and buggy while mak-
ing house calls. Many remember Dr.
Gum’s long white beard.

His office stands withering away, in soli-
tude, vacant and in danger of disappear-
ing. Dr. Gum owned 1,000 acres of land in
the Cypress Swamp, where much of the
lumber used in the Gum Saw Mill came
from. He is buried in the Long Cemetery
along with John.

[ [P S

Phalo provided by Barbara Godwin

Above, a shot of the original Frankford
Presbyterian Church at its original location

on Reed 5Street. The church was moved in
September of 1978 and remains almost
exactly as it was when it was bullt in 1881.
The land was donated by Francls Manaen
{Babe) Gum.
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Photos provided by Bm Gudwin
Above, a view of Main Street as it looked in the early part of the century. The building to

the far left is the original office of Dr. Gum. The photo below depicts the original Frankford
railroad station, which no longer stands.

in 1979, local historian Eugene L
Castrovillo, }r‘ put together a brief hustory
of Frankford, Delaware. Inside,
Castrovillo researched two of the towns
most important and prominent families,
including the Long family, who originally
founded the town, and the Gum family,
whom  Castroville  deemed  the
“Developers” of the community.  These
families were undoubtedly key in the for-
mation of the town today, and
Castroviflo’s account recalls exactly how
the two clans began The following

excerpt is taken from Castrovillo’s wark,

which is available at the Frankford Public
Library. :

Founders of Frankford

Not until 1775 did a fued between Lord
Baltimore and William Penn become set-
tled when Mason and Dixon surveyed the
line between Delaware and Maryland.

David Long Sr. was bom in Worchester,
Md. in 1717 and died in Sussex County in
1791. He is the progenitor of the Long
family -in the lower Sussex County area
and the first Long to own property in
Frankford. According to his will, probated
May 4, 1791, he owned two parcels of
property in Lower Sussex. One was a
plantation called Forest Flower, upon
which he lived and and the other was a
tract of land located in the Cedar (Cypress)
Swamp.

ankford on the map

It is said he built the first road through
the swamp. Long married Ann Lockwood
on May 26, 1735, who provided him with
10 children. His sons were David,
Een]amm John, and Armwell, and his
daughters were Mary Hutson, Elizabeth

Newport, Nancy Scudder, Rachel
Holloway, Miriam Gray and Joyce
Chamberln.

In David Sr.’s wili, ﬁ;rmwell Long, his
son, was named the executor of the will

Armwell Long was born Feb. 12, 1754
and died Nov. 22, 1834. He is bunied at the
Armwell Long Memorial Cemetery in
Frankford. Armwell married Elizabeth
Robinsor in July 1773. All the sons are
listed as having served in the War of 1812,
but Armwell secms to have attained the
most recognition and highest rank. At this
puinf in time, no link with the Long fami-
ly and the Revolutionary War has bea—:n
established.

According to an Act of Congress, on the
18th day of April 1806 the Delawarc
Militia was formed. On Oct. 5, 1807, the
Governor of Delaware appomted Armwell
Long Lieutenant Colonel of the 10th regi-
ment, Militia of the State of Delaware.
Governor Haslet would later change the
appointment to the 12th regiment, placing
in Long's control Benjamin Burton, cap-
tain, Isaac Cannon, Lieutenant, Joseph V.
Crockett, ensign, and 66 noncommis-

Continued on next page
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shows how little things have changed in the town, while

the photo on the bottom shows the Frankford Presbyterian Church as it stands today.
I

ool bell has been recently replaced in the front yard. A

use (top) still stands today, though it is now the Melson
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Funeral Home. The original sch

The old Frankford school ho
view of Thatcher street {(middle)




